
UNITED NATIONS

~~~NOMIC CD
SOCIAL COUNCil

First regular session, 1980

Distr.
GENERAL

E/1980~lG.l/sR.13

24 April 1980

ORIGIITAL: ENGLISH

,~.._---

SESSIONAL WORKING GROUP ON THE I~WLEtmNTATION OF THE INTERNATIONAL
COVENANT ON ECONOMIC, SOCIAL AND CULTURAL RIGHTS

SUtlIvIARY RECORD OF THE 13th t1EETING

Held at Headquarters, New York,
on Monday, 21 April 1980, at 3 p.m.

Chairman: t'Ir. NAGY (Hungary)

CONTENTS

Consideration of reports submitted in accordance with Council resolution 1988 (LX)
by States Parties concerning rights covered by articles 6 to 9 of the Covenant
(continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the workins languages. They should
be set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the record. They
should be sent within one week of the date of this document to the Chief, Official
Records Editing Section, Department of Conference Service, room A-3550, 866 United
Nations Plaza.

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendum, to be issued shortly after the end of the
session.

80-55518

6 '~

/ ...



E/19HO/U(}.1/SR.13
I.:nr:lish
Pa[~e 2

The meetinv was called to or<.ler at 4.10 p.m.

CON8IDEHA'rIO~r OF REPORTS SlIDMITTED nr ACCORDAllfCE HITH COUNCIL RESOLUTION 1988 (1X)
BY CTATES PARTIES COfrCERNEJG RIGHTS COVERED BY ARTIC1ES 6 TO 9 OF THE COVENAl,rT
(continued)

Report of Australia (continued) (E/1978/G/Add.15)

1. Mr. ABDUL-AZIZ (Libyan Arab Jamahiriya) observed that the introduction to the
Australian report contained the statement that in the event of an inconsistency
between a valid Commonwealth and an otherwise valid State law, the Commonwealth law
prevailed. He asked whether there was any mechanism by which, in the event that a
State law was more favourable to employees, the State law miGht be held to prevail.

2. Hr. SAnSON (International Labour Orr;anisation) said that the representative of
Australia, in introducinr, his country's report) had referred to action taken by his
Government followine its ratification of the Covenant and various 110 conventions,
includinr; the establishment of the national and State committees on discrimination
in employment and occupation. These committees, established primarily to implement
the ILO Discrimination (Employment and Occupation) Convention, provincd a ~eneral

system for the examination of complaints at the federal and state levels, and
supplemented specific legislative enactments on particular aspects of
discrimination. It was encourar,inr, to learn that the ILO comments on the
Australian report were under active consideration by the Government and that
30vernment action could be expected soon to improve the protection of the rights
set forth in the relevant conventions and the Covenant.

3. He vlished to make it clear that the references in the ILO report (E/1979/33)
to restrictions in Australia on the right of public servants, members of the police
force and members of the armed forces to form associations and to strike merely
described the existinr, legal situation and were not intended as criticism or as a
sugp;estion that the situation was not in accordance with the relevant 110
conventions and the Covenant. In that connexion he drew attention to the statement
in parar.;raphs 23 and 2!~ of part I of the 110 report of the approach adopted to such
matters by the Committee of Experts.

4. ~tr. JOSEPH (Australia) said that the representative of Finland had asked
whether the compulsory arbitration system in Australia restricted the right of
unions to strike. He noted that once a union had voluntarily opted to register
with the arbitration and conciliation machinery, it had to accept certain
restrictions, chief among them the requirement that that machinery should be
exhausted before a strike could le~ally be called. The machinery tried to produce
a settlement and served also to establish a couline-off period. A union which
chose not to register with that machinery was still within the law but suffered
certain disadvantages, although it could proceed to strike without inhibitions.
vlith regard to the question about statistics on industrial accidents and
occupational hazards, he agreed that the States did not always present their
statistics uniformly; it was nevertheless possible to forM a general picture.

/ ...

-'.-------------------------
I



c)

Law
a

Ll.

of
11.S

3 ,

.ce

'nt
.ch

e

E/1980/HG.l/SR.13
English
Page 3

(r.1r. Joseph, Australia)

5. The representative of th0 Federal Republic of Germany had asked how long
unemployment benefits were paid in Australia and on ,ITlat conditions. There was no
time-limit for the payment of such benefits, lolhich could continue until vork was
found. In theory, an able-bodied nerson should accept any emrloyment offered,
unless he had compelling reasons for not doin~ so. An unemployed vorker was,
however, not expected to chanee his area of residence merely in order to accept
employment. There was a ~rowinG sentiment among the Australian public that the
requirements for the payment of unemployment benefits should be made more
strinr,ent. Althou~h some abuses of the unemployment benefit scheme undoubtedly
occurred j he believed that they were exceptions and that most of the unemployed
actively sought employment. In any case, the State agencies were very active in
trying to find work for the unemployed and they provided benefits ungrudgin~ly.

6. In reply to a ~uestion on the status of public employees, he said that the
Government was not unduly vigorous in denying public employees the right to strike.
Post Office employees, in particular, seemed to strike quite often j but such
occurrences were extremely rare among the administrative or senior professional
grades. Although members of the armed forces did not have the right of
association j there w~re many channels for them to express their grievances. ifith
regard to the ~uestion on minimum wage legislation j he said that more than
90 per cent of the work force was covered by wage awards or collective agreements
registered ,vith the federal or State authorities and that such awards were
generally higher than the minimum wage. The remaining 10 per cent was made up of
part-time workers, vorkers in private domestic service who received other forms of
compensation and 'workers in sheltered factories who were often handicapped and
received other non-wage benefits from the co-operatives running the factories. In
reply to questions on union registration with the arbitration and conciliation
machinery, he said that registration was voluntary and that most unions registered;
no large union that he knew of had not registered .

7. The representative of India had asked why the reference in the report to the
Racial Discrimination Act of 1975 did not include religion or sex among the grounds
for discrimination prohibited by the Act. The Act had been enacted in
implementation of the International Covention on the Elimination of All Forms of
Racial Discrimination, which itself made no reference to discrimination based on
sex or religion. Since the Australian legislation was based on the Convention and
its wording was in all probability directly borrowed from that document, it made
no reference to such grounds. He could assure the representative of India that
Australia did not tolerate discrimination on those grounds. The committees on
discrimination in employment and occupation, which had bel~n mcntior:.ed earlier,
provided protection against discrimination on grounds of sex or religion. They
eenerally tried to resolve complaints and allegations of discrimination by a
process of conciliation and reasoned arguments, rather than by brandishing
legislation, and had worked quite well. The same representative had asked ec~~t

progress towards eliminating all remaining instances of inequality in pay for
women. Changes had occurred since the 1972 e~ual pay case and the 1974 national
waee case, referred to in his countryV s report, and he was glad to report that the
same minimum wage provisions applied to both male and female workers.

/ ...



,.# •

r,/1980/HG .1h~R .13
English
Paee h

(Mr . .roseph~ Australia)

B. 'I'hc representative of Spain had asked about the Australian health scheme. IIhe
health scheme issue had been very controversial in Australia and a number of: forms
had been experimented with. The funding of the scheme was placinG an increasing
strain on the federal bud~et. All Australian residents and temporary residents
were entitled to free treatment in hospitals and to reimbursement of medical
charees in excess of $A20. LVC:l1 thl' ~20 deductilJle could be waived for
financially handicapped persons such as the elderly. There were private lnsurance
schemes, which enabled Australians to obtain treatment in private rather than
public wards, thus securing e;reater comfort and privacy, but the medical standard
was the same as in the public wards. In reply to a question about the social
services provided by the Government, he said that there was no national
contribution scheme for social services, which were all funded from general
revenues, i. e. taxes. The b·.tde;et outlay for social security and welfare -payments,
includinr. pensions, amounted to approximately one third of the federal budget, or
nearly 010 billion.

9. In reply to the question asked about miGrant workers, he pointed out that
there were no "guest workers" in Australia: all immie;rants had the same rights
and obligations as nationals and there was no discrimination against them.
Immierants were invited to participate ill prOGrammes to ease their integration
into Australian society, which covered employment assistance, traininr" preparation
for jobs and related matters. Immigrants were subject to no disaoilities of a
leeal or constitutional nature.

10. The representative of the Soviet Union had asked about the level of
unemployment in Australia. The unemployment figure for March 1980 was
approximately 435,000, or 6.6 per cent of the work force. Althoueh there had been
a steady decline in the number ~f unemployed since mid-1979, the Government was
taking steps to reduce the figure further. The main aim of the Government's policy
was to combat inflation and encourage investment, and was bound to have some
influence on the level of employment. The main body concerned with employment and
training and retraining schemes was the Commonwealth Employment Service in the
Department of En~loyment and Industrial Relations which was referred to in his
country's report.

11. Replyin~ to the Libyan representative's question about the situation of
employees in instances in which federal legislation was less favourable than state
leGislation, he said that it was difficult to answer without seeing an example.
The position was that federal legislation prevniled over state legislation, but the
possibility of [ill appeal through the courts existed. In his view, only the court
system could rule on whether a federal act prevailed over a state act.

12. At the previous meeting, he had stated that Australia was in favour of an
open economic system, and the Indian representative had suggested that Australia
should look at its own record. In replY7 he wished to state that Australia was
committed to removing any existing barriers to free trade, which were not excessive
in any event. Australia was a large per capita importer of industrial products:
for every Australian the value of industrial imports had been $560 two years
earlier and had 9robably risen since then. Furthermore, it din not import only

/ ...

..



1

~y

i

re

..

E/198o/HG .l/SR. i"3
English '
Page 5

(r-1r. Joseph, Australia)

from other developed countries but had also sho\Vll concern for developing countries:
per capita imports of manufactures from developing countries amounted to $50, which
was much higher than the figure for other industrialized regions, including the
United States, the EEC countries and Japan. Although Australia had its flaws, it
did take its obligations seriously and tried to practise what it preached.

13. Mr. SVIRIDOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that he was grateful
to the Australian representative for his replies to various questions. His
delegation had, however, asked two questions that had not been answerecL.

14. His delegation had noted that in the section of the Australian ,,;"eport that
dealt with specific cases of discrimination against women in worl(, reference was
made to the national and state committees' success in the elimination of
legislative and regulatory provisions and of policies and practices inconsistent
with national policy on discrimination in employment. H~s first question had been
whether there were legislative and regulatory provisions that provided for
discrimination in emploYment, and if so, Ivhat measures were being taken to
eliminate them. Secondly, in discussing equality of minimum wage rates for male
and female employees, the report stated that the principle was not applied in
Western Australia. He would like to know whether the situation was still the qame
as in 1973, when the report had been prepared in other words, whether there were
still regions where minimum wages were different for men and women.

15. Nr. JOSEPH (Australia) apologized for having overlooked the Soviet
delegation's questions. With regard to the question regarding equality of m1nlmum
wage rates, he said that Tasmania had been brought into line with the national
policy. He was unfortunately not in a position to say what the situation was in
Western Australia, but the matter would be addressed in his Government's next
report. With regard to the question on legislative provisions to prevent
discrimination, he had thought that that question had been dealt with fully in his
reply to the Indian delegation. There were indeed legislative provisions aimed at
preventing discrimination. In particular, the Racial Discrimination Act of 1975
covered many situations under which discrimination might arise. In addition,
Australia had ratified the ILO Discrimination (EmploYment and Occupation)
Convention. As the ILO report (E/1979/33) also mentioned, a National Corr~ittee on
Discrimination in EmplOYment and Occupation and six State Discrimination Committees
had been established. Those committees worked on the basis of conciliation and
reasonable argument rather than by brandishine legislation. The legislation did
exist and could be used if necessary, but it was felt that every effort should be
made to solve pr()blems through persuasion.

16. Mr. AL-KAIST (Iraq) said that he would like to know what the situation was
with regard to equality in education, particularly as it affected foreigners. He
had heard that the national committees had received complaints on that subject.

17. Mr. JOSEPH (Australia) observed that the question asked by the representative
of Iraq did not relate directly to the report under consideration. Education in
Australia was provided only in English. Steps were taken to help persons who had
language difficulties to cope vTith t~iticn in English. Persons or communities

I ...



E/198o/WG,l/SR.13
Enr:lish
Page 6

(Hr. Joseph, Australia)

that Ivished to do so could supplement their education with week-end classes or
arrange special services for ethnic communities. The Government was very willing
to allovring clifferent [jrOl'.ps access to television CoLd ra.dio and they could concluct
their own programmes. However~ the education provided was an Australian education~

desi~ned to weld the ethnic corr~unities into a single nation. Australia had been
as successful as any other country in doing that largely because all children were
educated in nn Australian meaium to become Australians. The former Ministry of
Irr~igration had been replaced by the r1inistry of Educational and Ethnic Affairs and
w'ns particUlarly diligent in promotinr: -orogrammes for ethnic communities.

The meetin~ rose at 5.15 p.m.




